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1 P R O C E E D I N G S

2 4:55 p.m.

3 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: All right,

4 welcome back everybody. Can you hear me? All

5 right. We are going to resume the Informational

6 Hearing on the Watson Cogeneration Facility.

7 Before we start into the formal

8 presentations I wanted to thank, first of all, the

9 City of Carson for hosting us in this beautiful,

10 it looks like a brand new building complex. Those

11 of us who work at the Energy Commission have

12 building envy. It's really quite beautiful here.

13 And I wanted to ask if there are any

14 local elected officials that are here that would

15 like to introduce themselves?

16 MR. MARQUEZ: Were they notified?

17 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: I'm sorry?

18 MR. MARQUEZ: Were they notified?

19 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: I believe that

20 they have been notified, yes.

21 HEARING OFFICER FAY: They were. Yes

22 they have.

23 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Okay. Well

24 then just a few other introductions and then we

25 will launch into some formal but brief
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1 presentations. And there will be opportunity for

2 public comment at the end. And you will hear more

3 about public opportunities to participate in just

4 a moment.

5 In fact, why don't I start with that

6 introduction. Very importantly, Loreen McMahon,

7 who is in the back of the room, is from our Public

8 Adviser's Office. And she is going to tell you

9 how to participate formally or informally tonight

10 and in the future. How to get information about

11 this project and the application process. Where

12 we are in the timeline, all of that.

13 She is absolutely a wonderful resource

14 for any of you at any time. Well, any time during

15 working hours. So please do take advantage of

16 her. She has lots of materials. Most of the

17 materials you saw on the table when you came in

18 are from our Public Adviser's Office.

19 I am going to reintroduce our Hearing

20 Officer, Gary Fay, who is going to take over in

21 just a moment.

22 I would also like to introduce our

23 staff, our project staff, beginning with Eileen

24 Allen, who is from the Energy Commission's Siting

25 Division. And Eileen will introduce the other
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1 staff from the California Energy Commission that

2 will be involved.

3 And then we will ask the applicant to

4 introduce all of your various folks that are here.

5 So Eileen, why don't you introduce our

6 staff.

7 MS. ALLEN: To my immediate right is

8 Kevin Le, the associate project manager and to his

9 right is Christine Hammond, the project counsel.

10 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: And for the

11 applicant, please.

12 MR. METERSKY: I'm Ross Metersky with

13 BP. And we have from URS, Cindy Kyle-Fischer,

14 Emily Bierman, our attorney Chris Ellison, and

15 Walter Neil.

16 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Okay, thank

17 you. So I am going to hand it over now to Gary

18 Fay who is going to begin with the presentations.

19 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay. Just to

20 briefly review what we intend to do today I am

21 going to go over a few basics regarding our

22 process.

23 Then we will have a presentation by the

24 applicant on the project itself. And it will be

25 an air-conditioned version of what you saw out in
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1 the field, and probably with a little more

2 specificity and some charts.

3 Then staff will discuss how they go

4 about analyzing a project like this and then

5 they'll discuss the schedule they propose.

6 I'm sorry, actually the first of these

7 things would be a presentation from our Public

8 Adviser. Then after the applicant and the staff

9 and any comments that people would like to make

10 then we'll adjourn the hearing.

11 I want to mention that the applicant has

12 been good enough to provide some light snacks just

13 so people don't have any nutritional deficiencies

14 during these long presentations. That's for

15 everybody to enjoy, it's complimentary. The

16 Committee up here will be throwing a little bit in

17 the till because we don't accept anything from the

18 applicant. But everybody else is welcome to

19 participate in the snacks.

20 This is the first of a series of events

21 sponsored by the Energy Commission regarding this

22 Application for Certification and the process will

23 take a little over a year depending on the

24 details.

25 These proceedings are as open and as
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1 transparent as possible so that members of the

2 public can get as complete an opportunity as

3 possible to participate. To actually participate

4 to learn about the project and to give us your

5 input and your views about it.

6 The documents pertinent to today's

7 hearing are available out in the entry hall and it

8 includes the staff's Issue Identification Report,

9 which they will be addressing later. And there's

10 copies of today's notice and the agenda as well.

11 And the Public Adviser has some pamphlets out

12 there and Loreen will discuss those.

13 Notice of today's event was sent out on

14 August 4 to all the adjoining landowners,

15 governmental agencies and other individuals and

16 was posted on the Commission's web site. In

17 addition the Public Adviser's Office had done

18 their own outreach in the community.

19 To preserve the integrity and the

20 impartiality of our process we have regulations

21 both at the Commission and in the California

22 Administrative Procedures Act that expressly

23 prohibit private contacts between the parties.

24 For example, private contacts between the

25 applicant and the decision-maker or the staff and
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1 the decision-maker, or any intervenor and the

2 decision-maker. It's so that nobody has sort of a

3 closed door advantage.

4 Commissioner Levin mentioned this

5 earlier. Today feel free to say whatever you want

6 because we are on the record. And any time you

7 want to send us a note, express an opinion, just

8 mail it to the Energy Commission and it will be

9 posted and docketed. And that is all very public.

10 What is not allowed are private conversations with

11 the decision-maker.

12 And it's a little confusing because of

13 the seating arrangement but from Galen here to my

14 left are part of the decision-making group. And

15 we are the ones you can't schmooze with about

16 whether the project is good or bad.

17 Eileen is part of the staff that will be

18 analyzing the project. With her crew you can

19 speak. And they will be conducting workshops and

20 that sort of thing. But the decision-makers can

21 only deal with things in the public forum or in

22 writing on the public record.

23 Eventually the Commission after all the

24 workshops and the gathering of information about

25 the project and in the hearings and hearing
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1 everybody's concerns and the scientists' analysis.

2 That will all be submitted and part of the record.

3 And the Committee will take that record

4 and write a proposed decision for the Energy

5 Commission. And that will be available for 30

6 days to comment upon by anybody. Then the Energy

7 Commission will vote on the proposed decision that

8 the Committee puts out.

9 And again in front of the full Energy

10 Commission you'll have a chance to talk about the

11 project. So there's lots of opportunities for

12 input.

13 What I would like to do now is turn the

14 mic over to Loreen so she can talk about the role

15 of the Energy Commission's Public Adviser's Office

16 and how they can help you participate.

17 MS. McMAHON: I'm the only one that's

18 going to be talking backwards, sorry for that, but

19 I don't make my presentation to the staff, I make

20 it to you. So welcome. My name is Loreen

21 McMahon, I am the Associate Public Adviser to the

22 Energy Commission.

23 Our job, the public is a very important

24 part of our process. And it is so important to

25 the Energy Commission that we have an office that

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



8

1 is dedicated to working with the public and

2 helping them understand the process and how they

3 can participate in it effectively.

4 I have brochures in the back. This

5 brochure here gives you a little bit more

6 information and has contact information that you

7 can reach me at because my presentation today will

8 be rather quick so you will probably have some

9 questions. I also have the entire presentation

10 back there because there's important web sites and

11 information particular to this project in the

12 presentation so you may want to grab one of those

13 as well.

14 So part of being involved is we want you

15 be effective in your participation and make your

16 voice heard. So the first thing that we do is we

17 start informing the community when we are notified

18 that the project is coming. Our outreach includes

19 city and county officials. It includes broad

20 categories such as community environmental groups,

21 local organizations.

22 We reach out to churches. We reach out

23 to anything that -- any organization in your

24 community that can then pass the word on further

25 to try to get as many people informed of new
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1 projects as possible. We also do media outreach.

2 There's paid advertisings that we do. We post on

3 public service web sites like the Chamber of

4 Commerce's. And then we have also contacted local

5 TV and radio stations.

6 When the applicant sends in their

7 document and they are ready to start we also begin

8 -- our staff sends out notices to residents within

9 1,000 feet of the project and 500 feet of any

10 linears in the project. They send out the copies

11 of the AFC to the libraries and to agencies that

12 will have to review it, state, federal and local

13 agencies. So the outreach starts way back then.

14 Then we continue with our outreach. We

15 do notices through our mailing lists. We do

16 notices in our electronic list server. And we

17 send out correspondence to elected officials from

18 our Executive Director. Our media office sends

19 out press releases. And that's all that they did.

20 The long and short of that is that we spend a lot

21 of time trying to get the word out.

22 So once you are notified of a public

23 meeting and you come here and find out there's a

24 project that you are interested in how do you

25 continue to get more information? We have
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1 information that is available at the Commission,

2 on the web site. And that's one of the web sites

3 particular to this case.

4 Our Energy Commission library has

5 resources available and our dockets office can

6 also supply information. The tools that we use to

7 make sure that you are aware of information being

8 available is the list server notification, which

9 is the sign-up in the back that many of you have

10 signed up on. You can sign up on that and I'll

11 make sure that you are on the list server. Or you

12 can go to the web site and sign up on the list

13 server yourself at any time. We also have regular

14 mailing lists and then the sign-up sheets I just

15 said.

16 And in your community we have

17 information available. They are at these

18 libraries that are listed. And then access to

19 Internet will get you information without having

20 to go to Sacramento.

21 So when you want to become involved we

22 have two levels of public participation. The

23 first level we call informal participation, where

24 you can make comments. Your comments are

25 considered by the Commissioners, they become part
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1 of the record but they are not evidence. And that

2 is a key distinction in whether you are informal

3 or formal. And I'll explain that more and there's

4 also more resources on the web site to explain

5 that difference.

6 It's easy to make your voice heard. We

7 take written comments all throughout the project.

8 And when we have meetings we have blue sign-up

9 cards, we are not going to be using at this

10 meeting, I'm assuming. I don't think we have -- I

11 think he'll do hand-raising at this meeting. But

12 when we have a lot of people we typically have you

13 fill these out. Not to gather your information

14 but to help determine the speakers and the order

15 of the speakers.

16 Then to become a formal intervenor.

17 Anybody can petition to intervene. There's a form

18 that you are going to need. You don't have to be

19 an attorney. Once you submit the form it is sent

20 to the Committee on the case, which in this case

21 is Commissioner Levin and Douglas. They will make

22 a determination as to whether or not you can

23 become a formal intervenor.

24 If you are approved you become a party

25 that has the same rights and responsibilities of
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1 all the other parties. The information on

2 becoming an intervenor, again, on the web site,

3 and you can call my office for additional

4 assistance.

5 And the one thing that I want to also

6 point out about intervening is that it is

7 important that you intervene early so that you can

8 become a full participant early in the process.

9 And also so that you don't miss the deadline.

10 There is a deadline for when that's possible.

11 MR. MARQUEZ: When is the deadline?

12 HEARING OFFICER FAY: We have not issued

13 a schedule yet. The deadline is likely to be

14 perhaps three weeks after the first staff

15 assessment is presented. And really the important

16 thing, the first decision is, whether at that

17 point you really think it's worth becoming an

18 intervenor or you just want to participate by

19 commenting at various times.

20 MR. MARQUEZ: We would want to be an

21 intervenor.

22 MS. McMAHON: You can call my office and

23 I'll talk to you more about the details and how to

24 do that.

25 HEARING OFFICER FAY: And I'd say if you
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1 know that you want to be deeply involved to the

2 point of being an intervenor you should do so as

3 soon as possible.

4 MS. McMAHON: And then to be -- when you

5 are, if you do become an intervenor you have the

6 same rights and responsibilities. And these are

7 the kinds of rights and responsibilities that you

8 have. You will receive all the filings in the

9 cases, you will fully participate. You will be

10 able to serve documents and request documents and

11 make motions and petitions, cross examine.

12 There's a lot involved. And that's all --

13 material to guide you through all that is

14 available as well.

15 So the things that you want to keep in

16 mind from my presentation are that you can sign up

17 to stay informed.

18 You can also do your own research on-

19 line to stay informed as our web site will keep

20 all the documents relevant to the case listed

21 there.

22 Submit written comments so that the

23 Commission and the decision-makers know what your

24 thoughts are on the issues and particulars of the

25 project.
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1 And to attend these publicly noticed

2 events. And anyone can attend. We certainly

3 welcome anyone who is non-English speaking and we

4 can make special accommodations ahead of time as

5 well.

6 So we'll have a comment session at the

7 end and more questions.

8 MR. MARQUEZ: You have listed of cities

9 up there in LA County but you do not list LA city.

10 And Wilmington, which is a neighbor, is LA city.

11 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Sir, we are not

12 picking you up. Do you want to come up to the

13 podium and make this comment? Please identify

14 yourself.

15 MR. MARQUEZ: Yes. My name is Jesse

16 Marquez. I'm Executive Director of the Coalition

17 for a Safe Environment. We are an environmental

18 justice organization headquartered in Wilmington

19 with members in Carson. In fact, over 25 cities

20 here in Southern California.

21 I did notice on your list up there of

22 cities you had LA county but you do not have LA

23 city. And the neighbor to Carson and to the

24 refinery is Wilmington, which is Los Angeles. And

25 I live in Wilmington, which is part of Los
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1 Angeles.

2 MS. McMAHON: I don't have my mailing

3 list with me so I don't have a specific answer to

4 you other than a lot of the outreach that we use

5 depends on the newspapers and the elected

6 officials helping us identify groups. And we try

7 to continue to keep -- well certainly anyone who

8 indicates an interest would remain on the mailing

9 list.

10 And if you wanted me to check on that

11 specifically, because it's possible too that they

12 are not all listed for saving space. And you can

13 call my office and I'll check on that for you.

14 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay, thank you,

15 Loreen.

16 And we will be able to answer questions

17 later on if ways occur to you that you might

18 participate that were not made clear.

19 At this time I would like to turn it

20 over to the applicant and let them give a

21 presentation on the project. What it's about and

22 what it will accomplish. What the effects will be

23 on the local community, et cetera. So I'll turn

24 that over to the Watson team. Just be sure that

25 Troy can pick you up, whatever you say.
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1 MR. METERSKY: Thank you. My name is

2 Ross Metersky with BP, here on behalf of Watson

3 Cogeneration Company.

4 From looking around it seems looks

5 almost everyone here was also at the site visit so

6 we'll cover a lot of the same stuff and try to

7 expand a little bit.

8 The existing facility that you saw is

9 the Watson Cogeneration Company -- the Watson

10 Cogeneration facility. It is owned by the Watson

11 Cogeneration Company, which was formed in the '80s

12 to develop the Watson Cogen facility that's there

13 today. And the purpose is one, to provide steam

14 to the BP Carson refinery 24 hours a day, 365 days

15 a year. But also to provide electric power to the

16 BP Carson refinery and to SoCal Edison.

17 The existing facility is about 385

18 megawatts. It's a partnership between

19 subsidiaries of BP and Edison Mission Energy. And

20 it's again, it owns the Existing Watson

21 Cogeneration facility.

22 So again, we visited the existing cogen

23 facility. Just some stats. It's operated by BP,

24 BP employees. There are about 65, are 65

25 employees. It began commercial operation in 1988
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1 and has been operating continuously for over 20

2 years with a very successful track record.

3 It's fueled by natural gas and refinery

4 fuel gases. And it's highly integrated. We

5 talked about some of this on the site visit.

6 It's highly integrated with the Carson

7 refinery. The services, security, fire, site

8 services, are all provided and closely aligned

9 with the refinery. The plant that we saw, the

10 four units operating, were originally designed to

11 reliably meet the BP Carson steam demand.

12 Which leads us to why are we looking at

13 a fifth unit. I think Kevin asked me earlier, why

14 wasn't the fifth unit put in back in the '80s.

15 Well, the needs of the refinery at the time were

16 they just needed steam related to the capabilities

17 of the four units.

18 The purpose of adding the fifth unit is

19 to improve the reliability of steam supplied at

20 the BP refinery. The steam demand has grown in

21 the last 20 years and a new unit would help the

22 Watson Cogeneration meet its primary purpose of

23 providing steam, reliable steam to the Carson

24 refinery.

25 Some of the benefits of the project,
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1 just to talk about the first one. Delivering an

2 additional secure, long-term supply of steam to

3 the Carson refinery.

4 It will also -- we look at this as it's

5 really a steam plant that, oh by the way, produces

6 85 megawatts of electricity. So that electricity

7 will improve the reliability of the transmission

8 grid in the area and in the state because this is

9 in the middle of a load center and an area where

10 you have to have the generation to support the

11 grid.

12 And a key component is that we are going

13 to utilize reclaimed water. There will be no

14 additional fresh water consumed by the addition of

15 this project.

16 And we'll talk about cogeneration later

17 on but I just wanted to point out it is,

18 obviously, a cogeneration plant. Cogeneration

19 plants provide lower carbon energy solutions when

20 compared to alternatives. And there's more on

21 this later in the presentation.

22 The location and size, you just were on

23 the site of the Carson, BP Carson facility, which

24 contains the existing Watson Cogen Facility, which

25 is where the expansion will be located.
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1 The project is -- so as you saw in the

2 artist's rendering, the addition of the fifth unit

3 completes the design of the original facility. It

4 was all laid out for a fifth unit with the steam

5 tie-ins and all their ancillary services.

6 The project will be -- the major

7 components are an 85 megawatt GE Frame 7-EA

8 combustion turbine generator similar to the

9 existing ones and a heat recovery steam generator.

10 We talked about that a little bit on the site

11 visit. And we'll go through that in more detail

12 in the discussion on cogeneration. So the

13 technology is, again, the GE 7-EA using best

14 available control technology for that unit.

15 Some of the benefits, the economic

16 benefits of the project. The peak construction

17 employment will be at 80 jobs. I think the

18 average is around 50 during the whole life of

19 construction. The majority of the workforce is

20 expected to be from LA County. I think over 80

21 percent given the pool of employees in this area.

22 The total construction investment is

23 estimated to be between 140 and 170 million

24 dollars at this point, which would generate

25 property taxes of up to $1.8 million for the area.
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1 This is, this is a very large area. You

2 can see the project site is the red to the left.

3 And the construction lay-down area that we talked

4 about on the site visit is over to the right.

5 That's the existing lot. You can see Long Beach.

6 Just to get the feel for the scale, Long Beach is

7 down there by the URS emblem.

8 So that's just the surrounding area.

9 It's obviously a very industrial area already with

10 the BP refinery and other industrial processes and

11 plants in the area.

12 The current project schedule, assuming a

13 12 month CEC approval process, would have us

14 beginning construction August next year and

15 starting up, start-up and testing activities would

16 begin in April 2012. The plant would achieve

17 commercial operation in September of 2012.

18 Obviously this is a long project and a

19 lot of things need to happen to achieve this

20 schedule, not only the CEC schedule but also the

21 CAISO schedule, which is a very long

22 interconnection process.

23 The CAISO, as I said, is a key

24 component. But also securing a long-term power

25 purchase agreement is key for the project to
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1 advance.

2 This is the simulation that we had at

3 the site visit. You can see for those who weren't

4 there. On the left this is the view from the

5 south. On the left is the new unit. The parking

6 lot just due north of that is where we were

7 standing, looking south where the existing

8 warehouse is.

9 You can see the -- On the south end

10 that's where the fifth train will tie in to the

11 existing steam system. And that's just an example

12 of minimizing the infrastructure that needs to be

13 constructed because it is an existing facility.

14 And again, we'll have no -- the natural

15 gas line coming in from SoCal Gas is sufficient to

16 meet the needs of the project. And then the

17 electric transmission line leaving the site is

18 sufficient to meet the needs of the project. So

19 there will be no electric transmission line

20 constructed to get out to the delivery point of

21 the grid. It's hard to see but it's in the top

22 right hand corner of the site. And it runs about

23 1.5 to 1.6 miles to the point of interconnect. So

24 it's an existing line, we won't need to build a

25 new line.
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1 And again, this simulation was at the

2 site visit. This is the view of the additional

3 unit from -- if you are headed southbound on

4 Wilmington. That light just before the cogen

5 entrance. And the purpose of this is just to show

6 that the idea is it's going to look just like the

7 existing units. It's not going to be any taller,

8 it's not going to be any larger in footprint than

9 the existing four units. From the road and from

10 the air it's going to look just like the existing

11 four units.

12 And it was very quiet while we were out

13 there. All four units, again, were operating

14 while we were on-site and we were standing just a

15 couple of hundred feet away from the generating

16 units.

17 So cogeneration. Just simply,

18 cogeneration is using one fuel to produce two

19 energy sources or energy products. The cogen

20 plant, the top half of this depicts the

21 cogeneration process and the bottom half is

22 alternatives through conventional methods. So the

23 cogeneration is one fuel in one plant, one

24 location, producing two products.

25 In our case it's electricity and it's
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1 use of steam. There are other forms of useful

2 thermal energy, heat and steam. But in our case

3 it's steam. The steam goes to the refinery. The

4 refinery uses steam in their processes.

5 But the bottom -- I'll talk more about

6 the overall process. The bottom part is

7 conventional plants. What would you -- what would

8 conventional plants have to produce or consume to

9 produce the same output.

10 So we are going to produce 85 megawatts

11 in a conventional plant. You would have two

12 fuels, two fuel inputs. In this case we're

13 showing natural gas in both. So you would have a

14 power plant, that's the top half of the bottom

15 section. You would have a power plant consuming

16 natural gas generating electricity with exhaust

17 heat going up into the atmosphere. The

18 electricity is transmitted via power lines to get

19 to the ultimate users.

20 And then at the refinery, or at the

21 cogen host in this case, they would still need to

22 produce that steam. And how would they produce

23 the steam without cogeneration? They would

24 produce it in a traditional boiler, which is less

25 efficient, at the site of the refinery. They
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1 would consume natural gas, have waste heat from

2 the exhaust from the natural gas. The boiler

3 would consume gas to produce steam for delivery.

4 So you have two separate suppliers, in

5 this case for electric and steam. And in total

6 they would use more fuel and generate more

7 greenhouse gases than a cogeneration process

8 would.

9 Now on the cogeneration -- and this will

10 also describe the existing plans. We have a GE

11 combustion turbine that consumes natural gas. It

12 produces hot exhaust that instead of just the

13 exhaust going into the atmosphere, it's about a

14 1,000 degree exhaust, the exhaust goes into the

15 largest component you saw out there, the heat

16 recovery steam generator. Which is essentially a

17 big boiler. It has tubes with water and steam

18 flowing through them.

19 That hot exhaust air goes across the

20 tubes, heats up and creates high-temperature

21 steam. The steam then goes on, exits the heat

22 recovery steam generator, and in our case is

23 delivered to the process to a steam header which

24 goes on the BP refinery. So we are using -- and

25 then the exhaust is much lower temperature than
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1 the 1,000 degrees. So it uses the heat in that

2 exhaust to generate steam for delivery to the

3 refinery.

4 So it allows the generation to be in a

5 load center, the electrical generation. So you

6 have fewer losses related to the electrical

7 generation as opposed to having a central plant a

8 little more remote and having to transmit power

9 into the load center. And then it's more

10 efficient steam generation and production and more

11 flexible production than just having a stand-alone

12 boiler.

13 The Air Resources Board -- but instead

14 of using my words to describe the benefits and

15 importance of cogeneration or combined heat and

16 power just use the words from their scoping plan,

17 and I'll just read them. The first two are just

18 quotes.

19 "By producing both heat and

20 electricity CHP systems use more of

21 the energy contained in fuel,

22 thereby increasing efficiencies and

23 reducing greenhouse gas emissions."

24 And the second is:

25 "The widespread development of
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1 CHP systems would help displace the

2 need to develop new or expand

3 existing power plants. This should

4 produce statewide and regional

5 benefits."

6 In the Air Resources Board Scoping Plan

7 they target 4,000 megawatts of additional CHP by

8 2020 and believe it will generate significant

9 greenhouse gas reductions if the co-generation or

10 the CHP plant capacity is actually put in place.

11 The are from the scoping plan, other

12 benefits for CHP. We touched on some of them in

13 describing the cogeneration process. It's

14 alternative to new generation. Reduces

15 transmission and distribution. Transmission and

16 distribution development and construction is a

17 huge issue. And putting the power where the,

18 where the consumption is really alleviates a good

19 deal of that. It improves overall efficiency and

20 reliability. And most importantly, security of

21 the state's electricity system.

22 Provides valuable protection against

23 supply outages and brownouts, especially at the

24 refinery. The area where the Watson Cogen is is a

25 very strong piece of the system, of the
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1 transmission system because Watson Cogen is there

2 producing power.

3 We talked about the efficient fuel use.

4 Reduce energy, overall energy costs. Is most

5 efficient and cost-effective form of distributed

6 power generation. Reduces transmission and

7 distribution congestion because it is, again, at

8 the point of consumption. So it is much more

9 efficient that way.

10 And it could save, in the case of a host

11 facility like BP consuming power off of a

12 cogeneration unit, it guards against price spikes

13 in the market from peak electricity costs.

14 Here is my contact information. If you

15 have any questions please send me a note or an

16 email. Leave that up to give people time to write

17 it down. And I believe this is all on the CEC web

18 site as well.

19 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Mr. Metersky?

20 MR. METERSKY: Metersky, yes.

21 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Okay, sorry. I

22 do have one question. You mentioned earlier that

23 the initial purpose was to increase the

24 reliability of the steam supply for the refinery.

25 I'm just curious, has the refinery increased
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1 capacity? Has it changed refining methods or have

2 the existing four generators reduced efficiency

3 over the 20 years? What's the reason that the

4 refinery needs increased reliability of steam

5 resource now?

6 MR. METERSKY: The existing generators

7 still have similar capacity than when they were

8 originally installed. It's just over the 20 years

9 refinery demand has grown, primarily due to

10 environmental constraints put on their product.

11 They have had to refine it more and more and

12 improve the products that have come out.

13 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Okay. And then

14 my other question is, what are the greenhouse gas

15 emissions from the additional natural gas being

16 used by the generator?

17 MR. METERSKY: That is -- I think it's

18 about -- It's in Appendix I to the Air section.

19 We compare it to the emissions to the

20 alternatives. And it shows an 8 to 16 percent

21 reduction compared to the alternatives depending

22 on the source of power. So the minimum was 8 to

23 16. So I'd have to look up the actual numbers

24 from that table.

25 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: I may have some

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



29

1 additional questions but I'll wait for the staff

2 presentation because that may address some of

3 them. But thank you.

4 MR. METERSKY: Okay, thank you.

5 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Are there any

6 specific questions about the project that

7 Mr. Metersky just described? And we can come back

8 to him later, I just wanted to ask now.

9 All right, thank you very much. Oh, yes

10 there is one.

11 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Sir, you need

12 to come to the microphone, I'm sorry. And if you

13 could reintroduce yourself, please.

14 MR. MARQUEZ: Jesse Marquez, the

15 Coalition for a Safe Environment.

16 The question would be, will the project

17 require any additional type of energy reduction

18 credits in order for it to build or operate?

19 MR. METERSKY: Yes it will. We'll

20 require VOCs and potentially PM ERCs.

21 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay, anything

22 further? Otherwise we'll -- Susannah, go ahead.

23 MS. CHURCHILL: I just wanted to know a

24 little bit more about -- because I understand that

25 those credits, those offsets are in short supply
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1 these days in the South Coast. I'm interested to

2 know where you are getting the offsets.

3 MR. METERSKY: The PM credits are the

4 ones that are in short supply. We are working --

5 our proposal was to, one, either permit under the

6 existing limits of the facility, or two, purchase

7 credits as needed, or three, potentially use

8 existing BP credits. Or a combination of those.

9 HEARING OFFICER FAY: So your plan does

10 not involve any of the restricted credits under

11 the Priority Reserve Program?

12 MR. METERSKY: No, our project is not

13 related to the Priority Reserve.

14 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Well, if there is

15 nothing further then at this time I would like to

16 move to the staff presentation, how they will

17 analyze the project.

18 MR. METERSKY: Thank you.

19 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you.

20 MS. ALLEN: Hello. I'm Eileen Allen.

21 I'm the manager of the Energy Commission's Siting

22 and Compliance Office. I will be working with the

23 Energy Commission's two project managers for this

24 project, Alan Solomon and Kevin Le. Alan Solomon

25 couldn't be here today to make this presentation
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1 so I'm filling in for him but Kevin Le is here on

2 my right.

3 This presentation will provide you with

4 an overview of the Energy Commission's process for

5 evaluating the project.

6 With respect to the Energy Commission's

7 role: The Energy Commission is the permitting

8 authority for thermal power plants with a capacity

9 of 50 megawatts or greater. And thermal refers to

10 power plants that involve some kind of heat

11 component. So the Energy Commission does not have

12 jurisdiction over wind facilities or hydroelectric

13 facilities and others that are non-thermal.

14 We also have jurisdiction over related

15 facilities including the electric transmission

16 line to the first point of interconnection with

17 the utility grid, water supply pipelines, natural

18 gas pipelines, access roads and any other linear

19 facilities that are related to the project. In

20 general, if it is related to the project and it

21 wouldn't be there or proposed but for the project

22 then the Energy Commission has jurisdiction over

23 those components as well as the power plant

24 itself.

25 The Energy Commission is the lead state
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1 agency for the California Environmental Quality

2 Act, or CEQA. CEQA was enacted in 1970 in order

3 to ensure that state and local agencies consider

4 the environmental impacts of their decisions when

5 approving a public or private project. So the

6 Energy Commission is going through a CEQA analysis

7 related to this project.

8 The licensing process that the Energy

9 Commission goes through has three major stages.

10 The first stage is called Data Adequacy, where the

11 staff reviews the application to see whether it

12 has sufficient information for us to begin our

13 independent analysis. We have completed the data

14 adequacy stage. The Energy Commission determined

15 that we did have enough information to actually

16 start the analysis and evaluation process.

17 That process is called Discovery. The

18 initial stage involves a preliminary issues

19 identification and we have produced an Issues

20 Identification Report, which is out on the table.

21 I'll get into a bit more detail on that later.

22 The staff has also issued a series of

23 data requests which are actually questions asking

24 information about the project over the course of

25 approximately 20 technical areas such as air
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1 quality, public health, water supply, water

2 quality.

3 The staff will be holding at least one

4 public workshop to discuss the applicant's data

5 responses and any issues that have been raised.

6 We'll work on resolution of those issues. And

7 then that will lead to a Preliminary Staff

8 Assessment and a Final Staff Assessment.

9 The third phase is the Committee's

10 Evidentiary Hearing and Decision. And that would

11 be the two Commissioners that were noted,

12 Commissioner Levin and Commissioner Douglas. They

13 are the Committee. And the Committee will issue a

14 Presiding Member's Proposed Decision following the

15 Evidentiary Hearing.

16 The final part of the process is the

17 Energy Commission's full decision, where the

18 Energy Commission would be deliberating on the

19 Presiding Member's Proposed Decision.

20 This chart lays out the various roles in

21 the discovery and analysis process. Where in this

22 phase the Energy Commission staff is at the center

23 of the process in that we are doing the analytical

24 evaluation and preparing our Preliminary Staff

25 Assessment as the request of the data request and
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1 data response process finishes up.

2 Other participants are any intervenors

3 that have joined the process. The Public Adviser

4 working with the intervenors and any interested

5 members of the pubic. The applicant and then

6 local, state and federal agencies.

7 With respect to the discovery and

8 analysis process: The staff evaluates the project

9 and determines if the proposal complies with laws,

10 ordinances, regulations and standards at the

11 local, state and federal level. Informally we

12 refer to those as LORS.

13 We conduct an independent engineering

14 and environmental analysis where we identify

15 issues and potential impacts of the project.

16 Evaluate alternatives, which is required

17 under CEQA.

18 We identify mitigation measures to

19 eliminate or reduce the impacts.

20 And recommend conditions of

21 certification.

22 One of the hallmarks of the process is

23 facilitating public and agency participation

24 through an open, public process.

25 Then we produce two major documents, the
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1 Preliminary Staff Assessment and the Final Staff

2 Assessment. In those documents we make

3 recommendations to the Committee regarding

4 proposed conditions of certification.

5 Shifting to the Evidentiary Hearing and

6 Decision phase.

7 The Energy Commission staff is no longer

8 in the center of the process. We are one

9 participant, on the left there with the staff

10 testimony. The Committee is at the center of the

11 process running the hearing process and coming up

12 with the Presiding Member's Proposed Decision.

13 The other participants along with the

14 staff in this phase are any intervenors assisted

15 by the Public Adviser, interested members of the

16 public. The applicant is also providing testimony

17 that is in parallel with the staff's testimony.

18 And any comments from local, state and federal

19 agencies.

20 I would like to make a distinction here

21 that the staff is an independent, objective party

22 evaluating the project. We are not the applicant.

23 The Energy Commission staff has not proposed the

24 project. So the applicant's testimony is separate

25 and apart from the staff testimony.
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1 With respect to the Evidentiary Hearing

2 and Decision Process. The Committee conducts at

3 least one evidentiary hearing. Depending on the

4 complexity of the issues there may be more.

5 It then issues the Presiding Member's

6 Proposed Decision, which contains findings

7 regarding environmental impacts, public health and

8 engineering, conclusions.

9 Findings regarding the project's

10 compliance with LORS.

11 Proposed conditions of certification.

12 Any discussion regarding agency and

13 public comments.

14 And a recommendation on whether or not

15 the full Commission should approve the project.

16 That brings us to the full Commission

17 decision point. If the full Commission votes to

18 approve the project then the project is considered

19 licensed or certified.

20 At that point the Energy Commission

21 staff compliance group, which I also manage, takes

22 over in terms of monitoring the project for the

23 lifetime of that project. And that would begin

24 with pre-construction and then actually going to

25 construction.
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1 And then once the project began

2 operating, as the existing Watson Cogen Facility

3 is operating now, the Energy Commission staff

4 would have a monitoring program throughout the

5 remaining life of the project, which is generally

6 about 30 years.

7 Local, state and federal agencies are

8 key participants in the process. We work closely

9 with a number of agencies at each level. At the

10 local and regional level we will b working with

11 the City of Carson - Planning, Health, Public

12 Works departments, as examples.

13 The Los Angeles County Planning, Health

14 and Public Works departments.

15 And as Mr. Marquez noted, we will also

16 be working with the City of Los Angeles as

17 appropriate for various departments there.

18 The South Coast Air Quality Management

19 District. There are two representatives from the

20 district here tonight.

21 State agencies that we often work with

22 are the California Department of Fish and Game and

23 a regional agency that is an arm of the state, the

24 Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board.

25 At the federal level we often work with
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1 the US Fish and Wildlife Service and the US Army

2 Corps of Engineers. These are examples. I am not

3 saying that we will be working with eery one of

4 these agencies for this project, but these are

5 agencies we routinely work with.

6 As far as local and regional agencies,

7 we will definitely be working with all of the ones

8 listed there and the City of Los Angeles as

9 needed.

10 Public participation information was

11 highlighted by Loreen. We will be noticing

12 workshops and hearings at least ten days in

13 advance. You are welcome to ask that your name or

14 the name of your group be added to the Energy

15 Commission's mailing list. Or request to be

16 placed on the Energy Commission list serve for

17 email notifications of any advance or new

18 information.

19 The Energy Commission's web site is

20 listed there. I would encourage anyone here to

21 take a look at the Energy Commission's web site,

22 it has a great deal of information about how to

23 participate and various pieces of information

24 associated with the project.

25 The Application for Certification is

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



39

1 available for public review at the libraries

2 listed. And those were already up and discussed

3 when Loreen made her presentation.

4 It is also at the Energy Commission

5 library in Sacramento.

6 You can also send in any written

7 comments to the Dockets unit at the Energy

8 Commission. And the Dockets staff is available to

9 answer questions over the telephone you may have.

10 Contacts for the project at the Energy

11 Commission are the two Energy Commissioners and

12 Mr. Fay, the Hearing Officer.

13 Alan Solomon's telephone number and

14 email is listed there. He is the project manager

15 along with Kevin who is here. Christine Hammond's

16 email and telephone number is listed there along

17 with Loreen McMahon.

18 Contacts for the BP Watson

19 representative are here. There was a question

20 about Mr. Metersky's phone number, it's there.

21 And then we did dot have Mr. Metersky's email

22 address at the time but it was listed on the other

23 presentation. It is ross.metersky@bp.com.

24 MR. METERSKY: That's not the correct

25 number.
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1 MS. ALLEN: No?

2 MR. METERSKY: It's 2166.

3 MS. ALLEN: Sorry.

4 MR. METERSKY: That's all right.

5 MS. ALLEN: I apologize. Could you for

6 the record give us the entire correct phone

7 number?

8 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Eileen, why

9 don't you just say it out loud.

10 MS. ALLEN: All right.

11 MR. METERSKY: The correct phone number

12 is 713-354-2166.

13 MS. ALLEN: Two-one-six-six?

14 MR. METERSKY: Yes.

15 MS. ALLEN: Okay. One more time,

16 Mr. Metersky's phone number, area code 713-354-

17 2166.

18 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: You've got it

19 all on speed dial now?

20 (Laughter.)

21 MS. ALLEN: Keep those cards and letters

22 coming too.

23 (Laughter.)

24 HEARING OFFICER FAY: At this time I

25 would like to ask Eileen to go through the staff's
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1 Issues Identification Report. They turn out one

2 of these at the beginning of each case as sort of

3 a first cut preview of the kinds of things that

4 staff might be focusing on in a particular case.

5 MS. ALLEN: This is actually just the

6 next page in your handout, the handout that's

7 slide 13.

8 The purpose of staff's Issues

9 Identification Report is to provide an early look

10 at potential issues that we have noted and provide

11 an early focus on topics that we think may be

12 important in terms of items that may be difficult

13 to resolve, issues difficult to resolve, and

14 things that may affect the project schedule.

15 We will be dealing with the possibility

16 of potential non-compliance with LORS.

17 Potentially significant impacts that may

18 be difficult to mitigate.

19 Or as I noted, potential conflicts

20 between parties that could delay the schedule.

21 MR. MARQUEZ: Can you say what LORS is.

22 MS. ALLEN: Laws --

23 HEARING OFFICER FAY: LORS are -- go

24 ahead.

25 MS. ALLEN: Laws, ordinances,
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1 regulations and standards at the local, state and

2 federal level.

3 At this point very early in the process

4 staff identified one potential issue related to

5 transmission system design, which was our first

6 look at the California Independent System

7 Operator's Phase 1 Interconnection Study. The

8 California Independent System Operator is the

9 operator of the electricity grid for the investor-

10 owned utilities in California. And in this

11 particular case they are dealing with Southern

12 California Edison in this area.

13 So at the time that we wrote the Issues

14 Identification Report we had just begun to study

15 the interconnection document. At that time we

16 were uncertain about whether the interconnection

17 document would identify any significant impact on

18 other transmission facilities beyond the first

19 point of interconnection. And that means the

20 broader transmission system affecting the overall

21 region of the Los Angeles County area and beyond.

22 So if we had identified any potentially

23 significant impacts on downstream transmission

24 facilities, it's a possibility that there could

25 have been some environmental impacts with changes
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1 that could have been required.

2 However, we finished the preliminary

3 review of the study on September 1st and found

4 that on a first cut it looked like it was going to

5 be okay as far as having enough information about

6 potential impacts. At this point there has not

7 been any conclusion that there would be any impact

8 on downstream facilities. So we are moving

9 towards the preliminary conclusion that this is

10 unlikely to be an issue. This is tentative.

11 This is staff's first cut at the issues.

12 Many, many projects go along to the point where

13 other issues emerge. That may be the case for

14 this project. We will be open to hearing about

15 issues that members of the public and the

16 intervenors, various interested groups and any

17 local, state or federal agencies bring to our

18 attention.

19 Staff's proposed schedule will depend on

20 the applicant's timely response to data requests.

21 Any required action by other local,

22 state and federal agencies such as the South Coast

23 Air Quality Management District.

24 The resolution of identified issues.

25 And given that the transmission issue
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1 may be resolved that would be issues that have yet

2 to come up.

3 The proposed project qualifies for the

4 staff's official 12 month licensing process.

5 However, staff has an extremely heavy workload of

6 both fossil fueled power plant proposals and

7 renewable project proposals. So we will be doing

8 our very best to keep this licensing project going

9 to a conclusion at the end of 12 months. As

10 Mr. Fay noted, it may be a bit over 12 months, but

11 we will do the best we can to keep this one on

12 track.

13 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Eileen, can I

14 interrupt you for one second? I would like to add

15 on this point, in addition to having an

16 unprecedented siting case load right now at the

17 Energy Commission we also have three days off a

18 month when we are required not to work, not to be

19 in the building. So at an unprecedented time

20 workload-wise we also are forced to take 15

21 percent off a month and that is also impacting

22 staff.

23 Having said that, we are looking to the

24 applicant and others, potential intervenors, to do

25 everything you can to stay on schedule. Don't
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1 give us any excuses. And we will do our very best

2 to stay on the 12 month time line.

3 MS. ALLEN: Thank you, Commissioner.

4 Staff's Issues Identification Report was

5 published on August 20 and it includes a proposed

6 schedule. Usually the Commission Committee will

7 issue a scheduling order. It will take staff's

8 recommended schedule into account and then there

9 may be some modifications.

10 This scheduling order is usually issued

11 several weeks after the Informational Hearing and

12 Site Visit, which is occurring right now. It will

13 include the official project schedule and any

14 additional instructions and comments for various

15 participants.

16 Staff's proposed schedule has us

17 producing a PSA, which stands for Preliminary

18 Staff Assessment, sometime around the end of this

19 year or in early January. And then we would be

20 aiming to have a PSA workshop around mid-January.

21 Again this depends on everything going as planned

22 in a timely manner.

23 This would, on an ideal basis, lead us

24 to an Energy Commission decision on the project

25 towards the end of July. We'll be hoping that we
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1 can stick as closely to that as soon as possible.

2 MR. LEROY: I have a question. Where do

3 you --

4 HEARING OFFICER FAY: You'll have to

5 come up to the podium and state your name and then

6 ask the question.

7 MR. LEROY: I'm Tony Leroy. I just

8 wanted to know, where does your CEQA schedule fit

9 into that, the completion date on the CEQA fit

10 into your schedule?

11 MS. ALLEN: Well as the CEQA lead agency

12 the Commission produces a number of documents that

13 are functionally equivalent to the Draft

14 Environmental Impact Report and the Final

15 Environmental Impact Report. And then the

16 Presiding Member's Proposed Decision is comparable

17 to the final report. And then if the Energy

18 Commission were to approve the project that would

19 be comparable to a local lead agency approving the

20 Final Environmental Impact Report. And it would

21 be the CEQA approval.

22 MR. LEROY: So that would potentially

23 impact your schedule, right, if the CEQA report is

24 not in favor or what-not?

25 HEARING OFFICER FAY: The Energy
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1 Commission has long ago received certification by

2 the Secretary of Resources for the state that the

3 siting process as a whole is the EIR equivalent

4 under CEQA.

5 MR. LEROY: Okay.

6 HEARING OFFICER FAY: So there is no

7 particular document you can point to that is the

8 EIR. But the process as a whole covers more than

9 what the CEQA process covers.

10 MR. LEROY: Okay.

11 HEARING OFFICER FAY: And so the CEQA

12 process is being addressed during the Energy

13 Commissions' siting process.

14 MR. LEROY: In parallel.

15 HEARING OFFICER FAY: No, it is the CEQA

16 process. It replaces it.

17 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: I think it's

18 not the same process.

19 MR. LEROY: They're not, yeah.

20 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: It is intended

21 to address the issues that CEQA covers. So if you

22 have issues of concern that would normally be

23 included in a CEQA process they need to be

24 included in this process. This process replaces

25 the normal CEQA EIR process. But it is meant to
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1 be the equivalent for environmental impacts.

2 MR. LEROY: Okay.

3 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: So we need to

4 address them in this process. There will not be a

5 separate EIR environmental review process under

6 CEQA.

7 MR. LEROY: All right.

8 HEARING OFFICER FAY: And where you

9 might be used to waiting for an EIR to come out

10 and then having 30 days to comment, something like

11 that, the staff will produce a preliminary

12 analysis and you'll have 30 days to comment on

13 that. And they will have workshops dealing with

14 your comments as well as receiving them in

15 writing.

16 Then they will produce a final

17 assessment and there will be hearings in which the

18 staff assessment is their input, the applicant

19 will have input, any intervenors will have input.

20 That's an additional public forum.

21 Then the Committee will draft up a

22 decision and there will be a 30 day comment period

23 on the, on the proposed decision that the

24 Committee drafts.

25 So there's several more comment periods
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1 than under the classic CEQA process. But the

2 Secretary of Resources has certified this whole

3 process in lieu of the CEQA process.

4 MR. LEROY: Okay. Thank you.

5 MS. ALLEN: If you were to examine one

6 of the Preliminary Staff Assessments I think that

7 you would find that the content and breadth would

8 be very similar to a Draft Environmental Impact

9 Report.

10 MR. MARQUEZ: Jesse Marquez, Coalition

11 for a Safe Environment. I have major concerns

12 regarding CEQA compliance. I live and breathe

13 CEQA law.

14 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Mr. Marquez, can

15 we just wait just a second. I want to be sure --

16 and you can stay there if you want, we'll take you

17 first. But I want to be sure that the staff has

18 completed their presentation and discussion on the

19 schedule.

20 MR. MARQUEZ: Okay.

21 MS. ALLEN: I just have a bit more

22 regarding the compliance process.

23 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay.

24 MS. ALLEN: If the project is approved

25 the Energy Commission compliance oversight phase
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1 would apply during construction, operation and

2 eventual decommissioning, which would be the power

3 plant would have ceased operation.

4 The purpose of that is to ensure ongoing

5 compliance with all conditions of certification

6 and applicable LORS for the life of the project.

7 The staff members that are involved in

8 the compliance process are called Compliance

9 Project Managers. They provide oversight in

10 Sacramento in terms of a number of communications

11 with the project applicant and the project

12 applicant's construction contractor regarding how

13 construction is going.

14 And then once operation has begun they

15 work in conjunction with the Energy Commission's

16 technical staff for various disciplines to ensure

17 compliance with all conditions of certification.

18 That concludes my presentation.

19 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you. Okay.

20 And before we start taking comments I just want to

21 mention that at this point there are only two

22 parties in the case, the applicant and the Energy

23 Commission staff. But we have received a petition

24 for intervention by the California Unions for

25 Reliable Energy and the Committee will be
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1 considering that petition. And I assume there may

2 be other petitions if other organizations or

3 individuals wish to participate at that high level

4 in the case.

5 Mr. Marquez earlier asked when the

6 cutoff for intervention might be. And I'll just

7 -- it is possible that it might be as early as

8 shortly after the PSA workshop that is shown just

9 below the halfway mark on the schedule that you

10 have proposed by the staff. In other words, the

11 staff would issue its preliminary assessment,

12 conduct a workshop to discuss that, your comments

13 et cetera. The cutoff might be perhaps a week

14 after that workshop. This is up to the Committee

15 and they have to decide but that's just a

16 possibility.

17 So at this time we would like to take

18 questions and comments from the public.

19 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Mr. Marquez, go

20 ahead.

21 MR. MARQUEZ: I'll let everybody else

22 because I'm going to have extensive --

23 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Well you may be

24 the first and only one, I don't know.

25 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: No, I don't
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1 think so.

2 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay. Please come

3 up. And give your name and we want to hear your

4 comment.

5 MS. BROWN: My name is Mrs. Sybil, S-Y-

6 B-I-L, Brown, 17701 Avalon Boulevard, Carson,

7 California, Carson Harbor Village Mobile Home

8 Park, Space 410.

9 I want to say I know I have to leave

10 because I'm leaving for my vacation early in the

11 morning. But I certainly paid attention to the

12 presentation. I'm sure there are many questions

13 people will have to ask here. There's always

14 those for and those against.

15 But you know, I'm not one of the persons

16 that say I'm against everything. I want to make

17 sure that when I say I'm against something that it

18 is given some thought.

19 But what I can see, that there's

20 something to benefit Carson and that's why I'm

21 interested. Certainly everybody wants to say,

22 what am I going to get out of it. We are going to

23 profit in this community.

24 I wanted to say BP has been very, very,

25 very much involved in our community with helping
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1 various organizations which I'm a president of

2 with scholarship drives and many other

3 contributions. It's a win-win. If BP wins all of

4 us will win. Thank you.

5 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you very

6 much.

7 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Who else would

8 like to speak? Yes sir.

9 MR. LOVE: Good evening. I'm Roye Love,

10 the chairman of the Carson Environmental

11 Commission, and we have several commissioners

12 here.

13 I just wanted you to know that last

14 night our commission did vote, because they were

15 highly interested in this project, that you would

16 continue to move this ahead. We realize we don't

17 know all the details. And frankly I'll admit

18 there are some questions that I would have in

19 terms of the credits, how that's going to be

20 handled.

21 But basically, considering our problems

22 with energy, our problems in terms of water, our

23 water shortage, our problems in terms of pollution

24 here in the city. We believe that this project in

25 concept certainly could work greatly to our
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1 benefit in that it could help reduce some of the

2 pollution. That it could help us reach some of

3 our goals in terms of dealing with climate change

4 and global warming.

5 And so it was in that spirit that our

6 group decided that we would like for you to

7 continue. But obviously at the same time we

8 didn't see our name down there as one of the

9 people to contact. I realize you said Carson

10 planning. But also I'd like to see the

11 Environmental Commission also included.

12 We have a great deal of faith too in BP

13 and we think we can work together, but at the same

14 time we know that issues will come. And we'd like

15 to be able to look at alternatives and look at it

16 dispassionately so that we can do something in the

17 interest of our community. And bear in mind, of

18 course, this is what some people call an

19 environmental justice community. So we just want

20 to make sure that we can work this thing together.

21 And I think we can. I think the concept

22 is beautiful and the principle. But certainly let

23 us know. I won't take any more of your time.

24 I would point out one thing. You

25 indicated your contact, and perhaps you can
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1 straighten it out, is Martin Luther King Library.

2 Well I happened to go to the Martin Luther King

3 Library here in Carson. They informed me they

4 didn't have the certification.

5 However, apparently there are several

6 Martin Luther Kings as I can see. So maybe, there

7 may be one in Long Beach that you have sent

8 something to or the other ones. But please check

9 that. Because I was just there yesterday. But,

10 you know, as you see on your paper, you have

11 Martin Luther King listed three times there.

12 At any rate I want to thank you very

13 much, thank you for your time. And just remember

14 we are highly interested and we will work closely

15 with you. But we think this is going to be a good

16 project.

17 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you very

18 much, Mr. Love.

19 MR. LOVE: Thank you.

20 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: And thank you

21 very much to the other Environmental Commission

22 members who are here. I'm sorry I didn't ask you

23 to introduce yourselves earlier. Would you like

24 to now?

25 MS. ALLEN: We will follow up with the
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1 library. Thank you for letting us know.

2 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: We will

3 definitely. Unfortunately our Public Adviser had

4 to leave, I believe she had an earlier flight.

5 But we will definitely make sure. If there are

6 more than one Martin Luther King Libraries and we

7 need to get information to all of them -- If there

8 are other people or city government entities that

9 need to be added to our mailing list we will

10 happily do so. Please just leave us contact

11 information so we can do so.

12 Yes, please, ma'am.

13 MS. MACK: Good evening. I'm Eleanor

14 Mack.

15 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: That's my

16 daughter's name, Eleanor.

17 MS. MACK: I live at 1038 East Gladwick

18 Street here in Carson. I'm a retired principal of

19 a school here in Carson and I'm a member of the

20 Environmental Commission.

21 Our Commission is concerned about the

22 carbon footprint here in Carson. We have worked

23 with the City Council and our Mayor to become a

24 part of the Cool Cities Project to reduce the

25 greenhouse gases and work towards sustainability
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1 for our homes and our businesses.

2 We as a commission, as Roye said, voted

3 unanimously to support the Watson Cogeneration

4 Plant because we really felt like it would be

5 beneficial in terms of the water, in terms of the

6 electricity that would be released to the grid.

7 There are many benefits.

8 But most of all we feel that the

9 sponsor, BP Arco, is a trustworthy corporation,

10 and one that has been involved in the community in

11 so many ways. So many times that you have had a

12 chance to evaluate their word, do they stand

13 behind their word.

14 I know them to be highly visible and

15 supportive of all of the many aspects here in

16 Carson. I am not aware of all of them, but I know

17 as a school administrator we wanted to take

18 children back east on a college tour. And we're

19 talking about elementary school. And at that time

20 in 1994 it wasn't even thought of. And BP Arco

21 sponsored one of our students.

22 Their company has also supported our

23 sorority, Delta Sigma Theta each year with the

24 scholarships that are awarded to high school

25 students.
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1 Their company has supported programs for

2 seniors, youth and women. Prior to being on this

3 commission I was on the Women's Issues Commission

4 here in Carson and BP Arco has always been a

5 strong supporter of all of our endeavors.

6 I have found them to be honest and

7 reliable in their interaction with our community.

8 They have given so much to the Carson Coordinating

9 Council, which is a group that works with school

10 mental health to work with children that are

11 having difficulties in adjusting to school or

12 dealing with murders that they have witnessed, or

13 parents that are breaking up or parents that are

14 incarcerated. That company has stood behind us

15 from its beginning.

16 And because BP Arco has been there for

17 us that is why I am here for them. And I do hope

18 that this project will have your support in moving

19 forward. Thank you for your time.

20 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you very

21 much. I'm sorry, we didn't catch your last name,

22 is it May?

23 MS. MACK: Mack, M-A-C-K.

24 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you very

25 much.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FAY: And anybody

2 commenting, if you would state your name and spell

3 your last name, please.

4 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Unless it's

5 really, really obvious.

6 MR. PULIDO: Okay. Good evening

7 Commissioner, CEC, welcome to Carson, California.

8 Rick Pulido, homeowner, environmentalist, long-

9 time advocate here for our community.

10 As you can hear, today you heard BP has

11 been a good corporate sponsor, so to speak, for

12 community affairs and working with our residents

13 and we appreciate that.

14 But we also appreciate that the fact of

15 the matter is today, with the Commission's -- if

16 you will indulge me for a minute, has brought up a

17 couple of good points and we want to further make

18 sure that those points are followed through on.

19 They are major concerns actually.

20 The one that the lady alluded to

21 regarding downstream. We believe that should be,

22 that should be looked at from the Dominguez

23 Channel, from the Compton Creek all the way to the

24 LA River to Long Beach. That is something that is

25 very, very -- you know, we have wildlife out there
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1 now and we have major concerns of how this is

2 going to be mitigated, if you will, for the

3 wildlife as well as for the residents with the

4 water going into our oceans.

5 You know, we are concerned also with,

6 you know, pollution is all over the world. I

7 mean, anywhere you go. You heard earlier

8 Commissioner Love, global warming. But right here

9 in Carson we are surrounded, you know, our

10 residents by a lot of industry. And we try to

11 work things out together but we still have to be

12 cognizant that there has to be more done when it

13 comes to the air quality.

14 Our air has really, the particles if you

15 will. And other folks will elaborate on this

16 more, our coalition with Jesse Marquez probably

17 and a couple of other gentlemen here. But I know

18 as a resident the asthma, the epilepsy, the mental

19 health issues for our children, has really been

20 effective. I'd like to see what kind of

21 combustion, what kind of mitigations can be really

22 built-into the exhaust systems of this, of this

23 power plant.

24 And also on the air quality issue.

25 There's some new technology I understand, and I
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1 talked to a gentleman here earlier, up in Northern

2 California that has these power plants. And they

3 are actually even better than what we have out

4 there right now.

5 So we want the best technology that's

6 out there brought to Carson for our children, for

7 our seniors and for everybody that drives up and

8 down our freeways and visits us.

9 We also believe that we need -- our

10 residents are -- right now as you know the economy

11 is rough. Jobs. So I know some of them are

12 technical jobs but some are OJT, on the job

13 training, or the type of jobs that are entry

14 level. And we want to see some of those jobs for

15 our young folks here and for our people here that

16 are not employed.

17 And specifically if they are going to

18 use union jobs we'd like to see that our local

19 unions are utilized. I heard the word unions

20 earlier on some capacity, but it came to my mind

21 that it would be nice to see it utilized. I

22 believe BP uses union workers. We would like to

23 see that really implemented.

24 And then lastly there's a few other

25 things. The CEQA review and EIR. I think the P,
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1 the Preliminary Environmental Assessments that

2 used to be done by those agencies or groups.

3 Being that you are using a different mechanism now

4 you are our watchdog, so to speak, your agency.

5 And we really, I appreciate that.

6 But I also want to make sure that you

7 know from past dealings, not only with BP but

8 other, you know, big corporations if you will and

9 big industry here on the port all the way up into

10 LA. There has to be the mechanism, written and

11 followed-through in the compliance efforts. So

12 I'm not sure what it's going to be, I haven't

13 reviewed it all. We are looking forward to this

14 partnership, if you will, with you all. But we

15 have to be very transparent and very open.

16 I'm a little surprised that there aren't

17 -- I don't know if there are any elected officials

18 out here today or their staff members. But I

19 would think the neighboring cities and other folks

20 should have been here or should have been

21 notified. And there should have been -- I know it

22 was written and the lady said it was done but I

23 think -- they are our voice, they are our

24 leadership, and I want to hear them here.

25 And I want you to know that we are

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



63

1 grateful that you brought this right here to our

2 neighborhood here in Carson. But we also are very

3 cognizant that, you know, we have to make sure

4 that this process is not only followed, but like I

5 said earlier, not to be redundant, but is

6 transparent. For our children, for our health

7 reasons and for our, you know, good neighbor

8 policies that we have here with our industry.

9 So with that I would like to say thank

10 you very much. And the reclaimed water issue I

11 think is excellent. The alternatives that you are

12 trying to utilize on this is, you know, excellent.

13 But we have to build our capacities on the

14 credits. Make sure that it's not all about

15 credits. That's what has happened to Carson and

16 the South Bay in the past. And that is that they

17 dump on us with the utilization of credits, and

18 you know what I'm talking about.

19 I was here many years with the Planning

20 Commission and I noticed that as a, you know, as a

21 key word of being able to get away with a little

22 bit of, you know, mitigation. And I really think

23 this is going to be good as long as we go with new

24 technology and go forward and not backwards with

25 what we have there now or what we have had in the
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1 past. But really develop into the 21st century.

2 A showcase, if you will, here in Carson with the

3 green, the LEED and all the other stuff that we're

4 doing here in the city. Let this be that too.

5 Thank you very much.

6 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you for your

7 remarks.

8 Yes ma'am.

9 MS. O'NEAL: Good afternoon. My name is

10 Mary Anne O'Neal and I reside at 16211 Visalia

11 Avenue, Carson. I am one of the founders of the

12 city of Carson. I have been here since before

13 Carson originated. Walked the streets to gather

14 signatures for the incorporation of the city.

15 Something else of my background. I am a retired

16 educator and I also served on the Carson City

17 Council for five years.

18 What I have found is that BP is a

19 responsible and responsive company. That it

20 really gives back to the community. It's a

21 definite asset to the community.

22 One of the things that I appreciate so

23 much about BP is that for the past 17 years it has

24 had a summer work program. I know very often

25 summer work programs hire young people and they
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1 just come in and do perfunctory things and that's

2 the end of it.

3 These students involved in this program

4 gain life skills from BP. They concentrate on

5 safety, they concentrate on the environment, they

6 concentrate on their relationship with each other

7 and their responsibility to the community.

8 You have probably heard the saying or

9 somebody will say, well if this person is

10 associated with something that we can trust it and

11 we know that it's okay. Well if BP is involved in

12 this I have absolute trust in their ability to do

13 the right thing and to do things that will benefit

14 the entire community.

15 Just recently BP had schools write

16 letters or draft proposals as to how they would

17 improve energy. What they would do to improve the

18 sources of energy in the community. They gave

19 many checks. One particular teacher received a

20 check for $10,000 to use in her classroom. There

21 must have been about ten teachers who were given

22 checks for this particular project. Projects that

23 had to do with energy.

24 So do consider BP to be a responsible

25 and reliable company. Thank you.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you. And

2 ma'am, could you spell your last name.

3 MS. O'NEAL: Yes. Capital O,

4 apostrophe, capital N-E-A-L.

5 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you.

6 Yes sir.

7 MR. NAZEMI: Good evening. My name is

8 Mohsen Nazemi, I am Deputy Executive Officer with

9 the South Coast Air Quality Management District.

10 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Sir, rather

11 than spelling your name you could leave a card.

12 MR. NAZEMI: I'll leave you a card.

13 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you.

14 MR. NAZEMI: It's not a common name, I

15 understand. I just want to make a clarification

16 and add something to Eileen's presentation. I

17 heard a number of community members who made

18 comments about potential impacts of the project

19 specific to air quality. And that's the

20 responsibility of our agency in terms of a

21 regional agency that deals with air quality and

22 public health.

23 We are probably the only quote/unquote

24 local, state, federal agency in addition to the

25 California Energy Commission which has the sole
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1 siting authority for thermal power plants that we

2 also have a permitting authority for the Watson

3 Cogeneration, mainly because we are the

4 administrating agency for the United States

5 Environmental Protection Agency for the Title 5

6 Operating Permit Program under the Clean Air Act.

7 And as a result our agency also has a

8 process for public participation. Simultaneous

9 with the time when our agency provides input to

10 the Energy Commission for the Preliminary

11 Determination of Compliance we also issue what we

12 call a draft or proposed Title 5 permit. That

13 permit, that notice is actually sent out to local

14 residents and is advertised in local newspapers.

15 There is a 30 day comment period also on

16 the draft permit that we issue, or intend to issue

17 as a final eventually, and there will be

18 opportunities for the public to request a public

19 hearing or a public meeting similar to what you

20 are having here tonight. In the past we have

21 worked with the Energy Commission in cases where

22 we knew we were holding a meeting to see if we can

23 hold a joint meeting and we will be happy to look

24 into that opportunity in the future.

25 But at this point I just wanted to make
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1 it known to all the members in the public, since I

2 see some of them starting to leave, before they

3 all leave, that there will be another process

4 parallel to the Energy Commission through the

5 South Coast Air Quality Management District

6 permitting process. And there will be

7 opportunities for comments, which will be focused

8 only on the air quality and public health, not the

9 other areas of environmental impact that the

10 Energy Commission looks at.

11 And at this time our agency has not made

12 any decision relative, even a preliminary decision

13 relative to this project. Thank you.

14 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you for

15 coming.

16 I'll just mention that the relationship

17 between the South Coast District, and all the

18 districts in California, is governed by a

19 memorandum with the Energy Commission whereby the

20 standards, the conditions for a project to operate

21 are incorporated in the Energy Commission's

22 decision.

23 Sometimes the Energy Commission staff

24 may advocate additional conditions. But the

25 conditions that the local district implements
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1 under the Clean Air Act will be included in any

2 decision if this project is approved.

3 Who else would like to comment? Yes,

4 sir, please come forward.

5 MR. WIND: Good evening. Thank you for

6 the opportunity to speak this evening. I'll try

7 to keep my comments brief. My name is Henry Wind

8 and that's spelled W-I-N-D. I am the district

9 manager for the California Water Service Company's

10 Rancho Dominguez District.

11 We are the water provider for this area.

12 We are a public water utility. Provide domestic

13 and industrial water to the communities of Carson,

14 Torrance, Palos Verdes Peninsula, Redondo Beach,

15 Hermosa Beach and portions of a number of other

16 area cities.

17 I am here tonight to speak in support of

18 the project. BP has been instrumental in the

19 development of recycled water in the region and it

20 is the system's largest customer, the recycled

21 water system.

22 The project that you are considering

23 tonight will expand BP's use of recycled water.

24 It will improve the reliability of the system as a

25 whole, and will not create an additional demand on
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1 the existing potable water supply, the supply that

2 I am responsible for.

3 There are some direct benefits to Cal

4 Water and to all of the customers that I just

5 listed in our service area. Those benefits are,

6 recycled water is now an additional source of

7 water in the region that has reduced demands on

8 our potable system. The potable system provides

9 water for all of the homes and businesses in our

10 service area. It also provides water to the fire

11 hydrants and fire protection services.

12 Reduced potable demand has helped our

13 reach our conservation targets. Without this

14 additional supply our allocations that we are

15 currently facing would have a much greater effect

16 on our customers in this third of three dry years.

17 Finally, perhaps the most important

18 statement is that the project will provide

19 additional local power generation capacity to this

20 immediate area and power is critical in the

21 operation of our system, our wells, our pumps and

22 our treatment facilities.

23 Once again, thank you for the

24 opportunity to speak to the Board.

25 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Sir, could I
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1 ask you a question? I think there might have been

2 some confusion earlier when Ms. Allen mentioned

3 downstream impacts. I think that was a reference

4 to transmission issues. But one of the other

5 public commenters referred back to it as a water

6 issue. Can you speak to whether there are

7 downstream water impacts from this proposed

8 project or not, or have you eve considered that?

9 MR. WIND: You know, that would not be

10 my area of expertise.

11 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Okay. Well

12 thank you for saying so.

13 MR. WIND: Thank you.

14 HEARING OFFICER FAY: And just so the

15 audience knows, the Commission staff will look at

16 water supply, which Mr. Wind is involved in. But

17 also water quality, which addresses things like

18 the flow of water off the site. Whether the site

19 discharges any water of any lower quality than

20 came in originally, that sort of thing. So both

21 aspects, how the project gets water and how it

22 handles water in terms of local water quality,

23 will be addressed.

24 MS. ALLEN: Just one more thing to

25 follow up on that comment. As I listened to the
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1 comment about downstream I also heard something

2 about our need to examine any potential impacts on

3 Compton Creek and biological resources associated

4 with the creek. So we will be looking at that as

5 well.

6 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Yes sir, please go

7 ahead.

8 MR. GRANT: And you'll probably be

9 talking to the Corps of Engineers here or

10 something.

11 My name is Larry Grant and I'm a

12 Commissioner of Veterans Affairs for the City of

13 Carson. And for many years, many years, I have

14 lived in this city. In fact, 40 years, to be

15 exact. And I have been involved with BP Arco for

16 most of those years.

17 I would like to say that BP Arco has

18 supported the Veterans Affairs Commission and the

19 veterans of the great city of Carson, of which I

20 founded this Commission ten years ago in the city.

21 They also have supported the sheriff's department

22 here in the great city of Carson in many ways.

23 And I am very comfortable with BP in our community

24 because I know them to be a great corporate

25 citizen. Thank you very much.
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1 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you, sir.

2 Thank you for your work on behalf of the veterans.

3 Any other public speakers? Mr. Marquez,

4 you have been very patient.

5 MR. MARQUEZ: My name is Jesse Marquez,

6 J-E-S-S-E, Marquez, M-A-R-Q-U-E-Z. I am Executive

7 Director of Coalition for a Safe Environment. We

8 are an environmental justice organization

9 headquartered in Wilmington but we have members in

10 25 cities.

11 In fact, one of our board members is

12 here and two of our members are here from Carson.

13 My grandmother lived in Carson and passed away a

14 few years ago. My aunt and uncle live in Carson.

15 I have cousins in Carson. I have nephews and

16 nieces in Carson. So I am always in Carson.

17 It is the mission of our organization to

18 be able to review all project proposals and we do

19 do that. And so we look for the best in a project

20 and we also look for the worst in a project. In

21 the case of BP Arco refinery we support a

22 cogeneration facility, we have no problems with

23 it. The thing that we do object to will be, will

24 it have any negative impacts. And that's where we

25 come into the picture there. Because I will
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1 review any and all environmental documentation.

2 I have reviewed and read over 40

3 Environmental Impact Reports, the City of LA, the

4 City of Long Beach, you know, City of Carson, the

5 Port of LA, the Port of Long Beach. Some have

6 been as small as Carson's, you know, three- four-

7 hundred pager, all the way up to a 6,000 pager for

8 the Port of LA. So I have reviewed 40 of these

9 things.

10 All 40 were approved by a lead agency.

11 All 40 were certified by a lead agency. But in

12 our review not one complied with the law of CEQA.

13 And the only reason the lead agency got away with

14 it, because there was no environmental justice

15 like my organization at that time with an attorney

16 to review it. So over the years we have developed

17 an expertise to review environmental documentation

18 with a fine-toothed comb.

19 I mentioned earlier about the credits

20 and the priority reserve. I am one of those

21 litigants in that lawsuit. AQMD was found guilty

22 of violating CEQA law, period. Our government

23 agency. They were found illegally changing a rule

24 to allow credits reserved for cities and counties

25 and municipalities and police departments and
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1 hospitals, so they could transfer them and sell

2 them to a private power company.

3 They were also found guilty of illegally

4 creating credits out of the thin air.

5 So we take what we do very seriously,

6 okay. So we review things. And if we bring up

7 credits. I can tell you right now, if you cannot

8 build a facility that is zero polluting or near

9 zero polluting it should not be built. Because we

10 the public are the ones that pay the price.

11 No, we do not want them t purchase any

12 credits to offset anything. Because here is what

13 the government offset programs have done. They

14 allow a polluter in Carson or in Wilmington or in

15 any community to buy credits from somewhere else,

16 like in Riverside, so they do not have to reduce

17 the pollution in Carson. So what happens?

18 Pollution increases in Carson, it increases in

19 Wilmington and increases in West Long Beach. But

20 they get away scot-free. So we want no credits to

21 be allowed.

22 Another key thing that is in the

23 application that was up here on the board and that

24 was mentioned: they will be using the best

25 available control technology, BACT. Well guess
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1 what, we have studied BACT, it's not good enough.

2 We want MACT, the maximum available control

3 technology.

4 Because what have we learned about BACT?

5 AQMD can approve ten different companies with the

6 best available control technology. Some can be 95

7 percent efficient, some can be 90 percent, some

8 can be 80 percent, some can be 50 percent

9 efficient. And they are all best available

10 control technology. But do the polluters choose

11 the best one? No. They choose a lesser efficient

12 one. So that you know, we will want the maximum

13 available control technology.

14 There's a company here that already

15 offers a better technology for controlling the

16 pollution than is currently in the application.

17 Now what does that tell me? That the applicant

18 did not do a thorough review of available

19 technologies that are out there. In many cases

20 these technologies have been certified by CARB and

21 yet they still chose not to do them.

22 So we will be reviewing companies and

23 the technologies. We hope we will be able to make

24 recommendations from some of those technologies.

25 Now since we do have a good knowledge
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1 and review in Environmental Impact Reports we do

2 read the categories. So we will be reviewing air

3 pollution, we will be reviewing biological. I am

4 not that familiar quite as an equivalent

5 assessment that you referred to. But then I am

6 going to assume that if it is an equivalent that

7 you are going to have the same categories. So

8 when I look up environmental air pollution, you

9 know, I'll be able to find air pollution there.

10 But I want you to be fair to everyone

11 here and give us some estimate as to how many

12 pages is that environmental assessment component

13 of this whole thing. Because if you are saying

14 you want to do everything in 12 months and you are

15 going to give us 30 days to review it, we, the

16 public. When I know to review a 6,000 page

17 document such as the Port of LA, it would be 200

18 pages a day for 90 days in a row.

19 So we want to know, you know, how many

20 pages are you talking about? If it's going to

21 give us 30 days to review it and comment and it's

22 two, three hundred pages, that's not a problem.

23 But if we are going to be looking at a document

24 that is two-, three-, four-, five-thousand pages

25 long, I'm going to tell you right now, we want 90
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1 days public comment period.

2 You also talked about, you know, there

3 will be --

4 MS. ALLEN: I don't think, I don't think

5 you need to worry about thousands of pages.

6 MR. MARQUEZ: Yeah but I mean, in

7 fairness, we need to still have an idea, you know.

8 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Let us, let us

9 give you an idea. Eileen, roughly an average

10 total of a PSA would be what?

11 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: Of a

12 Preliminary Staff Assessment.

13 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Two hundred pages?

14 MS. ALLEN: No, more. Between 400 and

15 700.

16 MR. MARQUEZ: Okay.

17 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Okay. But the air

18 quality --

19 MR. MARQUEZ: Because in fairness to the

20 public, you know, we have the right to kind of

21 know that too, you know.

22 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Sure. And the air

23 quality section could be 80 pages, roughly, could

24 be. So if your focus is on air quality and public

25 health you'd have, say 80 pages of air quality and
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1 another maybe 30 pages on public health. Just

2 very roughly. And this case may be different.

3 But that's typical.

4 MR. MARQUEZ: And then you mentioned

5 future meetings. We want future meetings to be

6 held here in Carson, because as you can see we had

7 a nice public turnout. You have all future

8 meetings in Sacramento, you know, maybe one or two

9 people might make it. So we are asking that all

10 public meetings be held in Carson. If there is

11 going to be a Commission final decision that that

12 Commission be held here in Carson and not in

13 Sacramento or Northern California, Redding

14 somewhere. So we're asking that now in advance.

15 When we are talking about air quality,

16 for example, you know, and we are talking about

17 impacts on water. There is a thing called

18 atmospheric aerial deposition. Which means the

19 air pollution flies in the air but it also lands.

20 And it lands in water. So does your environmental

21 impact assessment include the quantity of that air

22 pollution that lands in water? Lands on the

23 public's homes? When a mother or father get up

24 and they're making breakfast for the children is

25 it landing in their breakfast? Is it landing in
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1 their orange juice? When they are in the car

2 driving to school to be dropped off are we having

3 to breathe it?

4 We do not want any increase in air

5 pollution. So we want to see no overriding

6 considerations. You are talking about a potential

7 problem of a significant impact maybe not be

8 mitigated. If it cannot be mitigated to less than

9 significant then do not approve that project. Do

10 not approve that system, that piece of equipment

11 or that part if it cannot protect the public.

12 We are already in an environmental

13 justice diesel death zone right now with all the

14 refineries here, asphalt plants, sulfur

15 facilities. The largest air pollution source, the

16 Port of LA in Southern California. The second

17 largest air pollution source the Port of Long

18 Beach. We want no more air pollution. Not 1,000

19 tone more, not 100 tons more, not one ton more.

20 Because yes, they may donate $10,000 to

21 so-and-so elementary school for their reading

22 program. When I know every one of these

23 elementary schools has a couple of hundred kids

24 that have asthma. And when that mother or father

25 take their child to, you know, a hospital and that

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



81

1 child stays overnight, that's a $10,000 bill right

2 there. And so when you do that assessment of

3 public health impacts we want to see the cost

4 element put into that too.

5 How many more children will have asthma?

6 How many more people will have bronchitis? How

7 many more people may get leukemia or whatever. So

8 we are going to request a health impact assessment

9 to be done.

10 We have no vote of confidence in health

11 risk assessments. Most people don't even know

12 what a health risk assessment is. That's normally

13 part of this environmental assessment process.

14 All it does is look at a computer model and comes

15 out with a number. We want you to conduct a

16 public health survey of the impact zone of this

17 project. Where you do a door-to-door public

18 health survey. Where you will know at the end of

19 the survey how many people have asthma,

20 bronchitis, sinusitis, lung cancer. You will know

21 that and you are able to establish a baseline.

22 So when you say there is a potential of,

23 you know, 15 out of a million, 100 out of a

24 million. Well what does that mean when you don't

25 even know the numbers here in this community.
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1 So an example of a lead agency not

2 listening to another government agency, the Port

3 of LA and the Port of Long Beach. The LA County

4 Health Department recommended to the Port of LA

5 for the last several expansion projects and new

6 projects that they conduct a health impact

7 assessment. And you know what the response was in

8 the Final EIR? They got approved. Approved and

9 certified. It was considered.

10 Well I have a lawsuit against the City

11 of LA and Port of LA right now. And according to

12 CEQA law being considered is not an acceptable

13 legal rationale. If you are going to not choose a

14 technology that is feasible and cost-effective.

15 If you are not going to choose an appropriate

16 mitigation. You have a fiduciary responsibility

17 to use your due diligence and to provide the

18 public the rationale and justification for not

19 choosing that technology or for not choosing that

20 mitigation. And that's the detail that we will be

21 assessing these projects, because it impacts our

22 communities and our families.

23 And who benefits from this? BP does.

24 They make a profit. Are they donating 50 percent

25 of electricity to the grid so that all of the
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1 residents that are impacted pay a lower ratepayer

2 fee? No. Are they donating ten percent free to

3 the City of Carson where it's going to be located

4 and ten percent to the City of LA that's the

5 neighbor and ten percent to the City of Long

6 Beach? No. Does it go to a grid? Yes. But

7 that's not doing us a favor.

8 So we ask that you do a good job.

9 That's all we're asking. That you do allow the

10 public enough time to be able to review these

11 documents. That you will consider the

12 technologies that are out there. Even to the

13 point if you have to publish something in the

14 newspapers and technology magazines looking for

15 the latest technologies. We want that to be done.

16 Because we know when we the public learn

17 from those technologies we can recommend them. So

18 in some cases like EmeraChem, we support that

19 company's technology because we know it's better

20 than the one that is being proposed, and so we

21 will do that.

22 And so we will submit public comments.

23 We will register as an intervenor. And we look

24 forward to working with you, thank you.

25 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you.
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1 Yes sir. Please state your name and

2 spell it.

3 MR. VALMUS: My name is Jeff Valmus and

4 I am the vice president and general manager for

5 EmeraChem Power. And I appreciate the opportunity

6 to be able to speak in front of you today. It's

7 always tough to follow Jesse in any kind of forum

8 but I will try to do so today.

9 Our company is a manufacturer of air

10 pollution control equipment. We manufacture

11 traditional technologies such as CO and SER, which

12 is being proposed on this technology. That's in

13 part of this environmental assessment. And we

14 also have advanced technology, which you have

15 heard people discuss here today.

16 It is always positive when I hear the

17 community, and especially the Carson environmental

18 group, praise a company like BP for their

19 stewardship to the community and their support.

20 It's not often that you hear that from a community

21 where a refinery is located and has a lot of

22 industrial applications. So it is very positive

23 to hear that.

24 They may be educated somewhat but they

25 may not be fully educated to what other
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1 technologies or things may be available to them.

2 I certainly understand the need for more steam.

3 As your steam demand grows you are putting on a

4 power plant, a cogen plant. Gosh, it's great to

5 hear a cogen plant being sited here versus just a

6 bunch of peakers which we are putting around for

7 peak power in this area. And cogen is definitely

8 the right way to go and I applaud that and I

9 support that.

10 But we are in a severe non-attainment

11 zone here in Southern California. It is so

12 difficult that we don't even know how we are going

13 to get to attainment and we have to look at black

14 boxes in the future to try to get there. So any

15 time we put on any new sources we need to be very

16 cognizant that we are putting on the tightest

17 possible control that we can and we are

18 eliminating the most that we can to purchase

19 credits that are hard to get. You know PM credits

20 are very tough to get and aren't created out of

21 thin air for the most part.

22 We have a power plant that we have been

23 operating up in Northern California. It's been

24 on-line for eight years now. And it's performance

25 from an air quality control far exceeds anything
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1 that is being listed in this package. That

2 technology has over 400,000 operating hours at

3 99.9 percent availability and is performing

4 incredibly across all criteria pollutants, much

5 higher than current BACT levels.

6 HEARING OFFICER FAY: What is the name

7 of the plant?

8 MS. ALLEN: Sir, can you specify that

9 power plant?

10 MR. VALMUS: The City of Redding.

11 HEARING OFFICER FAY: The City of

12 Redding. What's the capacity of the plant?

13 MR. VALMUS: It's a 50 megawatt GTX 100.

14 They are currently in the process of building Unit

15 6, that's Unit 5. Unit 6 is currently being built

16 as we speak and will also have that. As a matter

17 of fact the average NOx levels at that facility in

18 its lowest year was .54 PPM NOx, in its highest

19 year it was 1.0 PPM NOx.

20 Now looking at what is being stated here

21 for Control, we are looking at -- and this is the

22 details given in the environmental assessment of

23 this particular applicant. We are looking at 2

24 PPM for BACT, 4 PPM for CO and we are looking at

25 -- VOCs I think was 2 PPM.
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1 In comparison, if instead of putting

2 that CO SER system on there you just put on the

3 EMX technology. And not at what its performance

4 level is but what we are willing to guarantee.

5 You would see emission savings in the level of NOx

6 of 13 tons per year. It doesn't have any ammonia

7 and we would save 48 tons of ammonia being

8 generated into the air annually. With the sulfur

9 with 27 tons per year, CO 61 tons per year, VOCs

10 13.7 tons per year. And PM10 anywhere between 13

11 and 26 tons per year savings by just using the

12 other BACT technology here.

13 So these things are not created equal.

14 These things affect this community. Also it

15 affects the amount of credits you have to go out

16 there and buy. So I'd strongly consider in this

17 process that you look closely.

18 We have worked closely with URS. You

19 know, we have been to Princeton, New Jersey and

20 educated them on EMX. We have worked closely with

21 the South Coast and educated them on the current

22 EMX and what every power plant on EMX is

23 performing. We have ten units out there in the

24 field with ten years of experience. Over 400,000

25 operating hours.
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1 We have also educated the CEC staffers.

2 And once again, those are big organizations and

3 it's hard to get all the word around.

4 But this is not a secret. A lot of

5 people are familiar with this technology. And

6 certainly everybody who is involved in this

7 project with the exception of BP, they haven't

8 ever really been involved in that with the

9 exception of WSPA, who is familiar as well with

10 the technology.

11 But I'd strongly consider that you

12 closely take a look at this because it will have a

13 very lasting effect in not only the South Coast

14 District but also in the community where the power

15 plant is going to be located. So thanks.

16 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you for your

17 comments. I'll just mention, since you got

18 involved in some technical information I think you

19 are going to want to submit some input to the

20 staff. And be at the workshops or have somebody

21 there. That's where the nitty-gritty and the

22 details get discussed by the technical people.

23 MR. VALMUS: Yeah, I'd love to.

24 HEARING OFFICER FAY: We're glad to get

25 your comments today but --
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1 MR. VALMUS: And I also, I welcome any

2 further independent educational moments with any

3 of the groups, URS, BP, CEC, South Coast,

4 specifically on this project. And we can go

5 through all those technical details.

6 HEARING OFFICER FAY: Thank you.

7 Did anybody else who has not spoken wish

8 to address the Committee?

9 Okay, I don't see any indication. I'll

10 turn it over to Commissioner Levin for last words.

11 ASSOCIATE MEMBER LEVIN: I would just

12 like to thank you all for coming out and taking

13 the time. We will try to accommodate the request

14 to have most if not all hearings down here. Full

15 Commission Meetings are for a variety of reasons

16 in Sacramento. I don't know if we ever hold those

17 elsewhere. But we absolutely do need community,

18 all possible involvement.

19 It is very helpful for us to receive

20 information orally. It is also very helpful to

21 receive written comments, which any of you can

22 provide at any time.

23 As we have said several times, if you

24 would like to become a full intervenor and have

25 your comments introduced into evidence please do
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1 that sooner rather than later. You probably have

2 until early 2010 but the earlier the better

3 really.

4 And with that I think we will adjourn

5 the hearing. And again, thank you all and have a

6 good evening.

7 (Whereupon, at 6:51 p.m. the

8 Informational Hearing was

9 adjourned.)
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